Public Document Pack

Municipal Buildings
Boston

Lincolnshire PE21 8QR
Tel: 01205 314200

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE

Wednesday 16 July 2025

Notice of meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC)
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC)

on Thursday 24th July 2025 at 6.30 pm
in the Committee Room - Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR

Rob Barlow
Chief Executive

Membership:

Chairman: Councillor Patricia Marson

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Paul Gleeson

Councillors: Alison Austin, Emma Cresswell, Anton Dani, Neil Drayton, Anne Dorrian,

Sandeep Ghosh, Mike Gilbert, Andy Izard, Jonathan Noble,
Barrie Pierpoint, Lina Savickiene and Stephen Woodliffe

Members of the public are welcome to attend the committee meeting as observers except
during the consideration of exempt or confidential items.

This meeting may be subject to being recorded.

Agenda
Part | - Preliminaries
A Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence.
B  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda.



Part

Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting.
Update on Actions from the Minutes of the Last Meeting

To report progress on outstanding actions from the minutes of the last meeting, for
information only.

Public Questions

To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 5 p.m.
two clear working days prior to the meeting — for this meeting the deadline is 5 p.m. on 215
July 2025.

Public Speaking Time

To allow members of the public to address the Committee.

Il - Agenda Iltems

An update on crime and policing in Boston

(A verbal update from Inspector lan Cotton of Lincolnshire Police)

Work Programme (Pages 7 - 8)
(The Committee’s work programme for the current year for discussion and/or updating.)
BTAC Small and Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme (Pages 9 - 18)
(A report by the Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC Grant Administrator)
Exclusion of the Public and Press

To consider resolving - That under Section 100(A)(iv) of the Local Government Act 1972
the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in

Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended).

Appendix 1 - BTAC Working Group recommendation



Notes:

Please contact Democratic Services (demservices@boston.gov.uk) if you have any queries
about the agenda and documents for this meeting.

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Democratic Services as
soon as possible.

Alternative Versions

Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, Braille
or a specific language, please telephone 01205 314351.


mailto:demservices@boston.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem C

Boston Borough Council

Minutes of a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) held in the
Committee Room - Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR on Thursday 5th
June 2025 at 6.30 pm.

Present:

Councillor Patricia Marson, in the Chair.

Councillors Councillor Paul Gleeson (Vice-Chairman), Emma Cresswell, Anton Dani,
Neil Drayton, Anne Dorrian, Sandeep Ghosh, Mike Gilbert, Andy Izard, Jonathan Noble,
Lina Savickiene and Stephen Woodliffe.

Officers:

Assistant Director - Leisure and Local Services, Interim Strategic Finance Manager,
PSPSL, Head of Finance Delivery - BBC (PSPSL) and Democratic Services Officer.
Election of Chairman

Nominations were requested for the position of Chairman.

Resolved:

That Councillor Patsie Marson be appointed Chairman for the municipal year.

Councillor Marson thanked the committee and paid tribute to the work of her predecessor
Councillor Barrie Pierpoint.

Election of Vice-Chairman

Nominations were requested for the position of Vice-Chairman.

Resolved:

That Councillor Paul Gleeson be appointed Vice-Chairman for the municipal year.
Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Barrie Pierpoint.

Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were received.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 27th March 2025 were approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman, subject to it being noted that Councillor Woodliffe raised an
objection regarding the omission of his vote against the Pride event (on grounds of costs)

in the minutes of the meeting held on 27 March 2025. It was agreed that this would be
noted and recorded.

Page 1



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) Thursday 5 June 2025

Update on Actions from the Minutes of the Last Meeting

The following update was provided by the Lead Officer for the committee, the Assistant
Director — Leisure and Local Services, in relation to issues not otherwise covered by the
agenda:

Central Park

It was confirmed at the meeting on the 27" March 2025 that the contract for security
services at Central Park, due to expire in September 2025, would not be renewed. A
Working Group would be established to consider the future position. This item would be
returned to the Committee under the Work Programme.

Buses

Following the previous meeting, Marrianne Garbutt of Brylaine Travel had met with
Councillors Anne Dorrian and Barrie Pierpoint, along with officers. It was reiterated that
Boston Borough Council, while not a transport authority, continued to act as a proactive
partner in public transport matters. The Council remained the only district-level
authority represented on Lincolnshire County Council’s Public Transport Partnership
Board. Officers confirmed that the Council would continue to work closely with Brylaine
and other stakeholders to advocate for improved connectivity and investment in local
services.

Green Flag

The Green Flag Working Group had held two meetings to date, with a third scheduled
on 11™ June. The Working Group had been tasked with helping to shape elements of
the Green Flag management plan. Several sections of the plan had been completed
and were awaiting validation from the relevant service areas. Over the past month
officers had engaged with local community groups to understand the activities they
undertook in the park and activities they would like to support in the future, and
following discussions with some of these groups, it appeared they were supportive of
the Council’s aspirations to achieve the Green Flag Award. The Council had also been
conducting a small questionnaire exercise among park users, which was ongoing, to
collect feedback to further inform and evidence the plan.

The Assistant Director — Leisure and Local Services indicated that the project had
some challenges, as it involved engagement from several services, all of which were
currently working at capacity. Their involvement was crucial for validating and owning
the processes and policies outlined in the plan. Without their support, it would be
difficult to move forward with the formal application. To address those challenges, the
Council continued to engage in regular communication with officer colleagues, seeking
their advice and expertise to help align current practices and procedures with relevant
policies. These challenges would be discussed further at the next working group
meeting on 11" June, and the working group would be bringing a report back to
committee later in the year.

Highways

The Committee had previously expressed a desire to hear from Lincolnshire County
Council regarding highways matters, which had been delayed due to the recent
election period. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be receiving a

2-
Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) Thursday 5 June 2025

presentation from the Highways Authority in due course and all councillors would be
invited to attend.

e Community Governance Review Working Group
The first meeting of the Working Group was scheduled to take place on 19" June.
Thereafter, regular meetings would be held. The Working Group membership
comprised Councillors Pierpoint, Dorrian, Cresswell, Gilbert and Gleeson. The Working
Group was being supported by colleagues in Democratic Services. In the lead up to the
meeting on 19" June, Democratic Services were liaising with officers as part of an
information gathering exercise. Updates would be provided to the Committee
throughout the year via the Work Programme.

The Committee noted the updates and agreed to continue monitoring progress through the
Work Programme.

Public Questions

No public questions were received.

Public Speaking Time

There were no public speakers.

BTAC Quarter 4 2024/25 Financial Outturn report

The Committee received a report from the Interim Finance Manager, providing an
overview of the financial position of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) as at 31
March 2025. The report, presented in conjunction with the supplementary agenda pack,
outlined the final outturn for the 2024/25 financial year and the associated reserve position.

The Interim Finance Manager provided an update on the overall financial position for the
financial year ended April 2025 and shared how each service area had contributed to the
financial position. In quarter 4 of the financial year 2024/25, BTAC had a net surplus of
£86,213. This represented a strong turnaround, especially when considered that earlier in
the year, in Quarter 2, a shortfall of about £18,000 was faced.

BTAC had set a saving target of £36,455 and through focused efforts, particularly reducing
recharges from Boston Borough Council in relation to grounds maintenance, assistant
director work, accountancy and street cleaning, the Interim Finance Manager indicated
that it had been possible to not only meet the target but to vastly exceed the target. He
indicated that the outturn figures were preliminary and would undergo further review by
Cabinet and audit. He also confirmed that in relation to the BTAC figures, although he did
not anticipate it, any changes would be communicated to the committee at the next
meeting, with the surplus being transferred to reserves.

In relation to reserves, at the beginning of the financial year, the reserves stood at
£207,611. By the end of Quarter 4, this had increased to £293,825 with £14,801
earmarked for future expenses. The Interim Finance Manager confirmed that it meant that
the outturn report demonstrated that the recommended minimum reserve of £70,000 had
been met and exceeded.

Page 3



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) Thursday 5 June 2025

In relation to the performance of service areas, the Interim Finance Manager provided
further information.

A detailed breakdown of income and expenditure across all service areas was provided in
Appendix A of the report. Key highlights included:

« Open Spaces and Play Areas: Underspend of £20,847, primarily due to reduced
grounds maintenance costs and fewer repairs.

e Allotments. The costs were within budget and demonstrated strong financial
management.

o Central Park: Underspend of £37,601, with significant savings in grounds
maintenance and support services.

e Public Conveniences: Net underspend of nearly £10,000, despite increased
employee costs due to agency cover. Savings were achieved in premises,
transport, and support services.

o Events: Underspend of £18,762, largely due to reduced event delivery costs and
increased income from space hire and revenue.

« Town Centre Maintenance: Underspend of £4,318, with savings in transport and
supplies.

o Administration: Underspend of £32,623, reflecting reduced recharges and lower
operational costs.

Member deliberation followed which included:

¢ In relation to page 17 and the business rates refund referred to, the Assistant Director —
Leisure and Local Services clarified that it was a refund from the 2022/23 financial
year. Also, in relation to the same page, clarification was requested in relation to the
almost doubling of the cost of cash collection services. The Interim Finance Manager
agreed to provide subsequent information to the committee in response.

e Clarification was sought in relation to a potential refund from Anglian Water in relation
to sewage charges at Central Park. It was pointed out that this issue had been raised
before and the Interim Finance Manager agreed to check the position and provide
subsequent information to the committee.

¢ In relation to the unspent development budget (allotments), it was clarified that it was
£255 rather than £255,000 and there had been no development projects.

e Further information was requested about the savings in grounds maintenance at
Central Park. The Interim Finance Manager confirmed that the savings arose from an
exercise that was completed to look at recharges and how they were allocated to
BTAC. On analysis, it was found that BTAC was not being charged the correct
amounts and this resulted in an adjustment and savings.

e Inrelation to page 17, clarification was sought in relation to the additional costs per
day/week arising from agency cover for staff absence. The Interim Finance Manager
agreed to provide this information to the committee but in the meantime he indicated
that the cost of the agencies would be considerably higher than permanent staff costs.

Page 4



10

Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) Thursday 5 June 2025

¢ In relation to vehicles and the savings as against budget, the Interim Finance Manager
confirmed that the savings related to the lower usage and cost of moving supplies
between premises such as cleaning material and toiletries.

e In relation to events at page 18 of the agenda, the Interim Finance Manager confirmed
that he would provide subsequent information on the underspend as against budget.
He agreed to confirm whether an allocation of £17,000 had been reallocated to the
Boston Pride event.

e Clarification was also provided about the circumstances in which the committee had
approved the Boston Pride event, that it had benefitted from UK Shared Prosperity
Funding and it was anticipated that not all the anticipated BTAC expenditure would be
required. Deliberation also occurred about the circumstances in which a Boston music
festival had been proposed as one of a number of suggestions. Full information would
be provided on all events in the events report which would be submitted to the
committee later in the year.

e In relation to page 19, the Interim Finance Manager was asked to confirm how many
employees were employed directly by BTAC. The Assistant Director — Leisure and
Local Services confirmed there was one events assistant, two operatives and 2.5 toilet
cleaners.

¢ In relation to the savings made, members requested that it be recorded that Councillor
Pierpoint, with the help of officers, had put a lot of hours and effort into the cost saving
exercise to ensure that charges were being applied correctly.

o Clarification was requested in relation to the length of time the recommended reserves
figure of £70,000 figure had been in place and whether it should be reviewed. The
Interim Finance Manager confirmed that the figure had been in place for at least three
years. He confirmed that it was an issue he could take forward to the section 151
officer to see if there was any further recommendation to change that amount.

The Committee welcomed the improved financial position and acknowledged the efforts of
officers in delivering efficiencies. It was noted that the surplus would provide a strong
foundation for future investment in BTAC priorities.

Resolved:

1. That the financial position as at 31 March 2025 and the outturn reserve position
be noted; and

2. That the transfer of the surplus of £86,213 to BTAC reserves be approved.
Work Programme - Standing Item
The Committee received an update from the Assistant Director — Leisure and Local

Services on the current and forthcoming items scheduled for inclusion in the Boston Town
Area Committee’s Work Programme for the 2025/26 municipal year.

Page 5



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) Thursday 5 June 2025

The following items were confirmed for inclusion:

() the Assistant Director — Leisure and Local Services confirmed that it had been agreed
by the Committee in 2023 that meetings with Lincolnshire Police and Lincolnshire Housing
Partnership would take place on alternate years, which meant that it was necessary for
them to address the Committee before the end of the year. Lincolnshire Police had
provisionally agreed to address Committee on 24" July and Lincolnshire Housing
Partnership would address the Committee on 27" October or 27" November. The
Committee confirmed its agreement to proceed in that way.

(i) The last tour of BTAC assets and open spaces took place in July 2023. The Committee
agreed that a tour would take place on the morning of 24™ July, being the same date as
the next BTAC meeting.

(iii) At the last meeting, it was agreed that a Working Group would be formed in relation to
Central Park security to consider plans for September 2025 onwards when the current
security contract was due to end. It was agreed that the working group would consist of
Councillors Dorrian, Ghosh and Gleeson and that the first meeting would be arranged by
Democratic Services.

(iv) Membership of the Small Grants Working Group was re-confirmed as Councillors
Pierpoint, Gleeson, Woodliffe, Dani and Cresswell, who had a willingness to continue and
confirmation was provided that Councillor Pierpoint wished to continue to participate.
Councillor Savickiene also joined the Working Group.

Member deliberation followed which included the following issues:

Members suggested that the Committee consider allocating funds to improve facilities in
under-served areas, including Ingelow Park. It was noted that some play areas in new
developments were minimal and lacked sufficient equipment.

Deliberation occurred in relation to the work of the Community Governance Review
regarding the possibility of a Parish or Town Council being formed in Boston. It was
agreed, earlier in the meeting, that regular updates be provided to the Committee as the
work developed.

In relation to advertising boards being installed at locations in the Borough, clarification
was provided that the boards were owned by the Council and would be used for public
messaging, community safety, and advertising. A request was made for a future
discussion on their content and usage policy.

Members expressed a desire to ensure that the Committee’s legacy included tangible
improvements to community facilities and services, particularly in areas of greatest need.
Officers confirmed that all comments and suggestions would be recorded and reflected in
the updated work programme.

The Meeting ended at 7.15 pm.

Page 6



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE — WORK PROGRAMME 2025/26

LEAD OFFICER / GUEST

) abed

MEETING AGENDA ITEM PORTOELIO
HOLDER
BTAC Q4 2024/25 Financial Outturn report Interim Finance Manager Clir Ghosh
5 June 2025 Work Programme for forthcoming year Assistant Director — Culture and
Leisure
BTAC Small Grants BTAC Small Grants Officer Clir Dorrian
24 July 2025 Biennial update from Lincolnshire Police (to be Guest: Inspector lan Cotton
approved by Committee) (Lincolnshire Police)
BTAC Small Grants BTAC Small Grants Officer Clir Dorrian
25 September 2025 BTAC Q1 Financial Position as at 30 June 2025 Finance Manager
BTAC 2025/26 Events
BTAC Small Grants BTAC Small Grants Officer Clir Dorrian
BTAC Q2 Financial Position as at 30 September Finance Manager
27 November 2025 2025 .
Biennial update from Lincolnshire Housing Guest: Anthony Read, Chair
Partnership
Proposed BTAC Budget 2026/27 and MTFS to Finance Manager ]>
2030/31 Q
22 January 2026 D
D
BTAC Small Grants BTAC Small Grants Officer CliIr Dorrian (@R
26 March 2026 Finance Manager Q

BTAC Q3 Financial Position as at 31 December
2025

¢ W<



g obed

Chairman: Councillor Patsie Marson

Vice Chairman: Councillor Paul Gleeson
Lead Officer: Phil Perry. Assistant Director, Leisure and Local Services.
Clerk: Paul Stonebridge, Democratic Services Officer.

Additional Working Groups active as at issue of agenda:

e Green Flag Award:
Meeting dates — all as advised previously: (5.30pm and in the Meeting Room (adjacent to the Committee Room)): 11" June 2025, 16t
July 2025, 10t September 2025, 8™ October 2025, 121" November 2025

e Small Grants:
Meeting dates (all at 6pm and via Microsoft Teams): 26" June 2025, 28" August 2025, 30" October 2025 and 26" February 2026.
Details will also be circulated by email to all members of the working group.

e Central Park security:
Meeting dates — 16" July (at 4pm via Microsoft Teams)



Report To:
Date:
Subject:

Purpose:

Key Decision:
Portfolio Holder:

Report Of:

Report Author:

Ward(s) Affected:

Exempt Report:

Agenda Iltem 3

Boston Town Area Committee

24™ July 2025

BTAC Small Grant Scheme

To receive the recommendations of the BTAC Grants Working
Group in respect of grant applications submitted in Round 1
25/26 of the BTAC Small Grant Scheme.

No

Chairman of BTAC

Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and
BTAC Grant Administrator

Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and
BTAC Grant Administrator

All BTAC Wards

Partially, Appendix 1 is exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 because it
contains information relating to the financial or business affairs
of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).

Summary

This report presents the recommendations of the BTAC Grants Working Group in
respect of grant applications submitted in Round 1 of the financial year 2025/2026 for
the BTAC Small Grant Scheme.

Recommendations

1. That the Committee approve the grant funding award recommendations made by
the BTAC Grants Working Group in respect of eligible applications as set out in
Appendix 1.

Page 9




Reasons for Recommendations

To provide grants to local groups that undertake community work which benefits the
BTAC Wards of Boston.

Other Options Considered

Do not support the BTAC Working Group recommendations — Not recommended as all
applications received have been assessed against the relevant grant scheme policy and
criteria.

1. Background

1.1 The BTAC Grants Working Group met on 08™ July 2025 to review applications
submitted for consideration in Round 1 25/26 of the BTAC Small Grant Scheme.

2. Report
2.1 2 eligible applications were received in Round 1 of the scheme.

2.2 Details of each applicant, project details, the amount requested and the Working
Group funding award recommendations are shown in Appendix 1.

3. Conclusion

3.1. In conclusion, the BTAC Grants Working Group recommendations are presented at
full Committee, in line with the Committee’s role to make community development
grants to town-based organisations and events.

Implications

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

None

Corporate Priorities

The BTAC Grant Schemes support the following corporate priorities: Healthy Lives; Safer
and Resilient Communities and the Environment.

Staffing

None.

Workforce Capacity Implications
None.

Constitutional and Legal Implications

Page 10



The Localism Act 2011 provides the Local Authority with a general power of competence.
This power can be used to undertake activity (such as the awarding of grants) which
benefits the local authority area or persons resident or present in the area.

Details of grants awarded by a Local Authority to voluntary, community and social
enterprise organisations are required to published annually in accordance with the Local
Transparency Code 2015.

The Council’s Constitution sets out that the Committee may make community development
grants to town-based organisations and events. This function is exercised under
delegated authority from the Cabinet.

Data Protection

None.

Financial

The value of each grant sought it set out in Appendix 1. The Committee’s current financial
position in relation to the Small Grant is set out in the finance pro-forma that accompanies
this report.

Risk Management

The BTAC Small Grant Scheme operate within set policies and protocols.

Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescales

The BTAC Grants Working Group is made up of up to 6 active members of the Boston
Town Area Committee and they are brought together to review all eligible applications
submitted to the BTAC Grants Administrator in each live round of the grant scheme.
Reputation

None

Contracts

None.

Crime and Disorder

None.

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights / Safeguarding

Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting Boston Town Area

Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, including those protected
characteristics identified in the Equalities Act 2010.

Page 11



There are no equalities implications within this report. All equalities implications will be
managed alongside each individual applicant through the monitoring process of project
delivery.

There are no safeguarding implications directly arising from this report.
Health and Wellbeing

The BTAC Small and Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Schemes operate within
Corporate Priority: Healthy Lives.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

An impact assessment has been undertaken and the assessment has been based on the
experience to date and the key areas where there is likely to have been an impact
however this is only indicative and can’t be a comprehensive assessment. Ways to better
capture the impact of individual schemes, without potentially overburdening community
projects are being explored with Climate Change Group Manager. — See Appendix 2 of
this report.

Acronyms

BTAC — Boston Town Area Committee

Appendices
Exempt Appendix 1: BTAC Working Group recommendations
Appendix 2: Infographic relating to climate change assessment

Background Papers

Document title Where the document can be viewed

BTAC Working Group Application Pack Application summaries are available to BTAC
Members on request, from the BTAC Grant
Scheme Administrator

Chronological History of this Report

Name of Body Date

BTAC Grants Working Group 08t July 2025

Report Approval

Report author: Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and
Administrator of the Boston Town Area Committee Grant
Scheme
Maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk

Signed off by: Emily Spicer, Assistant Director of Well-Being and

Community Leadership
Emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk
Approved for publication: Councillor Patricia Marson — Chairman of BTAC

Page 12


mailto:Maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk

Checklist = Complete before submission to Democratic Services

S151 Officer consulted on financial implications:

Yes — amendments made on
request — 16/07/25

Monitoring Officer consulted on legal and constitutional
implications:

Yes — approved 16/07/25

Portfolio Holder consulted: BTAC Chairman

Waiting Approval — 15/07/25

Ward Member consulted: BTAC Grants Working Group

Yes — 08" July 2025

Page 13




FINANCE PROFORMA
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS)
FROM: Caroline Thacker-Smith — Finance Business Partner, PSPSL

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED

REPORT: Boston Town Area Committee
REPORT DATE: 24% July 2025
£ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year4d £ Year 5
2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30
Revenue
BTAC Small Grants 16,725.62
Communities Grants 486.97
Total Revenue Cost 17,212.59
Funding required: Considered by: BTAC Date: 24™ July 2025
Total capital cost f0
Revenue cost £1,935.39
Financial Services Comments 2025/26 Applications Balance C/F
£ £ £
BTAC Small Grants 16,725.62 1,935.39 14,790.23
Communities Grants 486.97 - 486.97
Total 17,212.59 1,935.39 15,277.20
Risk
None
Procurement
None
Value for Money Efficiency
This FP is valid for 3 months from FP date If this FP is no longer required please advise If there are changes to the original report it
Finance may invalidate this document, it must be
reviewed by Finance.

Page 14




Appendix 2

Generated
15/07/25
v1.36

The Partnership has committed to being Net Zero by 2040 (14
years and 5 months away).

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	C Minutes
	2 Work Programme
	3 BTAC Small and Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme
	Appendix 1


